

ORDINARY MEETING

MINUTES

22 NOVEMBER 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ITEM	SUBJECT PAGE NO		
1	OPENING3		
2	PRESENT		
3	APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE		
4	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING		
5	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS ON THE AGENDA		
6	BUSINESS OUTSTANDING		
	NIL4		
7	PUBLIC FORUMS/DEPUTATIONS		
-	NIL		
8	PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS		
0	NIL		
•			
9	COMMITTEE REPORTS4		
	NIL		
10	COUNCILLOR/DELEGATE REPORTS		
	10.1 COUNCILLOR DISCRETIONARY FUND APPLICATION - COUNCILLOR DONNA KIRKLAND: CENTRAL QUEENSLAND FAMILY HISTORY ASSOCIATION		
11	OFFICERS' REPORTS		
	11.1 REQUEST FOR A MINOR CHANGE TO DEVELOPMENT PERMIT D/138-2020 FOR MATERIAL CHANGE OF USE FOR RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY		
	 11.2 2023 ROCKHAMPTON AGRICULTURAL SHOW COMMITTEE		
	11.4 ROCKYNATS - TRADE FEES AND CHARGES		
	11.5 ROCKHAMPTON REGION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2023-2028 AND ROCKHAMPTON REGION ECONOMIC ACTION PLAN 2023-2028		
	11.6 SUMMARY BUDGET MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD		
	ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2022		
12	NOTICES OF MOTION		
•-			

	NIL		.21
13	QUEST	IONS ON NOTICE	.21
	NIL		.21
14	URGEN	T BUSINESS\QUESTIONS	.21
	NIL		.21
15	CLOSE	D SESSION	.23
	16.1 16.2	OCTOBER MONTHLY BUDGET REVIEW WASTE MANAGEMENT MATTER	
16	CONFIE	DENTIAL REPORTS	.24
	16.1 16.2	OCTOBER MONTHLY BUDGET REVIEW	. 24 . 25
17	CLOSU	RE OF MEETING	.26

REPORT OF THE ORDINARY MEETING HELD AT COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 232 BOLSOVER STREET, ROCKHAMPTON ON TUESDAY, 22 NOVEMBER 2022 COMMENCING AT 9:00AM

1 OPENING

1.1 Acknowledgement of Country

2 PRESENT

Members Present:

The Mayor, Councillor A P Williams (Chairperson) Deputy Mayor, Councillor N K Fisher Councillor S Latcham Councillor C E Smith Councillor C R Rutherford Councillor M D Wickerson Councillor D Kirkland Councillor G D Mathers

In Attendance:

Mr E Pardon – Chief Executive Officer Mr R Cheesman – Deputy Chief Executive Officer Mr P Kofod – General Manager Regional Services Ms A Cutler – General Manager Community Services Ms M Taylor – Chief Financial Officer Mr G Bowden – Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton Mr A Russell – Executive Manager Strategy and Planning Mr D Morrison – Manager Workforce and Governance Mr M Crow – Manager Infrastructure Planning Mr M O'Keeffe – Manager Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling Mr J Kann – Manager Office of the Mayor Mr J Gwydir – Manager Civil Operations Mr W Clark – Industry Engagement Manager Ms E Brown – Events Coordinator Ms L Leeder – Senior Committee Support Officer

3 APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of 8 November 2022 be confirmed.

Moved by:Councillor SmithSeconded by:Councillor LatchamMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS ON THE AGENDA

6 BUSINESS OUTSTANDING

Nil

7 PUBLIC FORUMS/DEPUTATIONS

Nil

8 PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS

Nil

9 COMMITTEE REPORTS

Nil

10 COUNCILLOR/DELEGATE REPORTS

10.1 COUNCILLOR DISCRETIONARY FUND APPLICATION - COUNCILLOR DONNA KIRKLAND: CENTRAL QUEENSLAND FAMILY HISTORY ASSOCIATION

File No:	8295
Authorising Officer:	Emma Brodel - Senior Executive Assistant to the Mayor Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author:	Megan Careless - Executive Support Officer

SUMMARY

This report requests Council's consideration and approval for an allocation from Councillor Donna Kirkland's Councillor Discretionary Fund towards Central Queensland Family History Association for the purchase of a second 8tb NAS backup storage system.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT Council approves the allocation of \$309.00 from Councillor Donna Kirkland's Councillor Discretionary Fund to the Central Queensland Family History Association for the purchase of a second 8tb NAS backup storage system.

Moved by:Councillor SmithSeconded by:Councillor FisherMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11 OFFICERS' REPORTS

11.1 REQUEST FOR A MINOR CHANGE TO DEVELOPMENT PERMIT D/138-2020 FOR MATERIAL CHANGE OF USE FOR RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY

File No:	D/138-2020
Authorising Officer:	Amanda O'Mara - Coordinator Development Assessment Doug Scott - Manager Planning and Regulatory Services Alicia Cutler - General Manager Community Services
Author:	Kathy McDonald - Senior Planning Officer

SUMMARY

Development Application Number:	D/138-2020
Applicant:	Multicap Limited
Real Property Address:	Lot 59 on RP848298
Common Property Address:	76 Jardine Street, West Rockhampton
Area of Site:	1.29 hectares
Planning Scheme:	Rockhampton Region Planning Scheme 2015 (version 2.1)
Planning Scheme Zone:	Low Density Residential Zone
Planning Scheme Overlays:	Steep Land Overlay
Approval Sought:	Amended Decision Notice for Development Permit for Material Change of Use for a Residential Care Facility
Referral Agency(s):	Not Applicable

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

RECOMMENDATION A

THAT to reflect the changes, Multicap Limited, be issued with an Amended Decision Notice:

ADMINISTRATION

- 1.1 The Developer and their employee, agent, contractor or invitee is responsible for ensuring compliance with the conditions of this development approval.
- 1.2 Where these Conditions refer to "Council" in relation to requiring Council to approve or to be satisfied as to any matter, or conferring on the Council a function, power or discretion, that role may be fulfilled in whole or in part by a delegate appointed for that purpose by the Council.
- 1.3 All conditions, works, or requirements of this development approval must be undertaken, completed, and be accompanied by a Compliance Certificate for any operational works required by this development approval:
 - 1.3.1 to Council's satisfaction;
 - 1.3.2 at no cost to Council; and
 - 1.3.3 prior to the commencement of the use,

unless otherwise stated.

- 1.4 Infrastructure requirements of this development approval must be contributed to the relevant authorities, where applicable, at no cost to Council, prior to the commencement of the use, unless otherwise stated.
- 1.5 The following further Development Permits must be obtained prior to the commencement of any works associated with their purposes:
 - 1.5.1 Operational Works:
 - (i) Road Works;
 - (ii) Access and Parking Works;
 - (iii) Sewerage Works;
 - (iv) Stormwater Works;
 - (v) Roof and Allotment Drainage;
 - (vi) Site Works;
 - 1.5.2 Plumbing and Drainage Works; and
 - 1.5.3 Building Works.
- 1.6 All Development Permits for Operational Works and Plumbing and Drainage Works must be obtained prior to the issue of a Development Permit for Building Works.
- 1.7 All works must be designed, constructed and maintained in accordance with the relevant Council policies, guidelines and standards, unless otherwise stated.
- 1.8 All engineering drawings/specifications, design and construction works must be in accordance with the requirements of the relevant *Australian Standards* and must be approved, supervised and certified by a Registered Professional Engineer of Queensland.

2.0 <u>APPROVED PLANS AND DOCUMENTS</u>

2.1 The approved development must be completed and maintained generally in accordance with the approved plans and documents, except where amended by any condition of this development approval:

Drawing/report title	Prepared by	Date	Reference number	Rev
Site Master Plan – Proposed	Thomson Adsett	21 September 2022	20.0166.14 (sheet 10-10)	СВ
Stage 1B- Floor Plan and Elevation 4 x 1 Bed Fully Accessible + OOA	Thomson Adsett	6 October 2022	MCU 002	3
Stage 1A- Floor Plan and Elevation 2 Bed Robust Villa + OOA	Thomson Adsett	06 October 2022	MCU 003	2
Stage 1A– Proposed Floor Plan 2 Bed High Physical Villa +OOA	Thomson Adsett	6 October 2022	MCU 004	3
Stage 2 - Floor Plan and Elevation Short Term Accommodation + Admin	Thomson Adsett	9 February 2021	MCU 005	2
Stage 2 - Floor Plan and Elevation 2 x 2 Bed Duplex with OOA	Thomson Adsett	9 February 2021	MCU 006	2
Flood Impact Assessment and Stormwater Management Plan	McMurtrie Consulting Engineers	8 February 2021	J20065	R1V2

Technical Memorandum – 76 Jardine Street, West Rockhampton Stage 1A Flooding and	McMurtrie Consulting Engineers	12 October 2022	J20065	-
Stormwater				

- 2.2 Where there is any conflict between the conditions of this development approval and the details shown on the approved plans and documents, the conditions of this development approval must prevail.
- 2.3 Where conditions require the above plans or documents to be amended, the revised document(s) must be submitted for approval by Council prior to the submission of an application for a Development Permit for Operational Works.

3.0 STAGED DEVELOPMENT

- 3.1 This development approval is for a development to be undertaken in three (3) discrete stages, namely:
 - 3.1.1 Stage One A (1A) and Stage One B (1B); and
 - 3.1.2 Stage Two (2);

in accordance with the approved plan (refer to condition 2.1).

The stages are required to be undertaken in chronological order.

- 3.2 Stage One A (1A) must be completed within six (6) years from the date this approval takes effect. Stage One B (1B) and Stage Two (2) must be completed within 12 years from the date this approval takes effect.
- 3.3 Unless otherwise expressly stated, the conditions must be read as being applicable to all stages.

4.0 <u>ROAD WORKS</u>

- 4.1 A Development Permit for Operational Works (road works) must be obtained prior to the commencement of any road works required by this development approval.
- 4.2 All road works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines*, relevant *Australian Standards* and *Austroads Guidelines* and the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (road works).
- 4.3 Jardine Street must be widened where required for the full frontage of the development site to match the existing kerb and channel alignment. Kerb and channel, pedestrian pathways and drainage infrastructure must be included.
- 4.4 All pathways and access ramps must be designed and constructed in accordance with *Australian Standard AS1428* "Design for access and mobility".
- 4.5 All pathways must incorporate kerb ramps at all road crossing points.
- 4.6 Traffic signs and pavement markings must be provided in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices – Queensland. Where necessary, existing traffic signs and pavement markings must be modified in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices – Queensland.

5.0 ACCESS AND PARKING WORKS

- 5.1 A Development Permit for Operational Works (access and parking works) must be obtained prior to the commencement of any access and parking works on the development site.
- 5.2 All access and parking works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines, Australian Standard AS2890 "Parking facilities"* and the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (access and parking works).

- 5.3 All car parking and access areas must be sealed to Council's satisfaction. Design and construction must be in accordance with the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (access and parking works).
- 5.4 A new access to the development must be provided at Jardine Street.
- 5.5 All vehicles must ingress and egress the development in a forward gear.
- 5.6 Adequate sight distances must be provided for all ingress and egress movements at the access driveways in accordance with *Australian Standard AS2890.2 "Parking facilities Off street commercial vehicle facilities"*.
- 5.7 A minimum of twenty eight (28) parking spaces must be provided on-site. This includes twelve (12) covered car parking spaces and sixteen (16) visitor's parking spaces.
- 5.8 Universal access parking spaces must be provided on-site in accordance with Australian Standard AS2890.6 "Parking facilities - Off-street parking for people with disabilities".
- 5.9 Parking spaces must be line-marked in accordance with the approved Site Plan (refer to condition 2.1) and in accordance with the *Australian Standard AS2890 "Parking facilities"* and the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (access and parking works).
- 5.10 All vehicle operations associated with the development must be directed by suitable directional, informative, regulatory or warning signs in accordance with Australian Standard AS1742.1 "Manual of uniform traffic control devices" and Australian Standard AS2890.1 "Parking facilities Off-street car parking".
- 5.11 Road signage and pavement markings must be installed in accordance with Australian Standard AS1742.1 "Manual of uniform traffic control devices".
- 5.12 All vehicle operation areas must be illuminated in accordance with the requirements of *Australian Standard AS1158* "*Lighting for roads and public spaces*".
- 5.13 All internal pedestrian pathways must be designed and constructed in accordance with *Australian Standard AS1428 "Design for access and mobility"*.

6.0 <u>SEWERAGE WORKS</u>

- 6.1 A Development Permit for Operational Works (sewerage works) must be obtained prior to the commencement of any sewerage works on the development site.
- 6.2 All sewerage works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines*, *Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008, Plumbing and Drainage Act 2018* and the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (sewerage works).
- 6.3 The development must be connected to Council's reticulated sewerage network.
- 6.4 A 225 millimetre diameter gravity sewerage main diversion and associated sewerage access chambers must be constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1). This non-trunk infrastructure is conditioned under section 145 of the *Planning Act 2016*.
- 6.5 Any proposed sewerage access chamber located within a park or reserve, or below a ten per cent (10%) Annual exceedance probability flood level, must be provided with bolt down lids.
- 6.6 The finished sewerage access chamber surface must be at a sufficient level to avoid ponding of stormwater above the top of the chamber. A heavy duty trafficable lid must be provided in the trafficable area.
- 6.7 Sewer connections located within trafficable areas must be raised or lowered to suit the finished surface levels and must be provided with heavy duty trafficable lids.

- 6.8 All works must be undertaken in accordance with *Queensland Development Code,* Mandatory Part 1.4 "Building over or near relevant infrastructure."
- 6.9 The development must comply with Council's Building Over/Adjacent to Local Government Sewerage Infrastructure Policy. Any permit associated with the Building Over/Adjacent to Local Government Sewerage Infrastructure Policy must be obtained prior to the issue of a Development Permit for Building Works.
- 6.10 Large trees must not be planted within one (1) metre of the centreline of any sewerage and/or water infrastructure; small shrubs and groundcover are acceptable.
- 7.0 WATER WORKS
- 7.1 All water works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines, Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008*, and *Plumbing and Drainage Act 2018*.
- 7.2 The development must be connected to Council's reticulated water network.
- 7.3 Adequate domestic and firefighting protection must be provided to the development, and must be certified by an hydraulic engineer or other suitably qualified person.
- 7.4 Water meter boxes located within trafficable areas must be raised or lowered to suit the finished surface levels and must be provided with heavy duty trafficable lids.
- 7.5 Easements must be provided over all water infrastructure located within private property. The easement location(s) and width(s) must be in accordance with the requirements of the *Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines*.
- 8.0 PLUMBING AND DRAINAGE WORKS
- 8.1 A Development Permit for Plumbing and Drainage Works must be obtained for the proposed structure on the development site.
- 8.2 All internal plumbing and drainage works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines, Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008, Plumbing and Drainage Act 2018, Council's Plumbing and Drainage Policies and the provisions of a Development Permit for Plumbing and Drainage Works.*

9.0 STORMWATER WORKS

- 9.1 A Development Permit for Operational Works (stormwater works) must be obtained prior to the commencement of any stormwater works required by this development approval.
- 9.2 All stormwater drainage works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Queensland Urban Drainage Manual, Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines*, sound engineering practice and the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (stormwater works).
- 9.3 All stormwater must drain to a demonstrated lawful point of discharge and must not adversely affect surrounding land or infrastructure in comparison to the predevelopment conditions, including but not limited to blocking, altering or diverting existing stormwater runoff patterns or having the potential to cause damage to other infrastructure.
- 9.4 The development must not increase peak stormwater runoff for a selected range of storm events up to and including a one per cent (1%) Annual exceedance probability storm event, for the post-development conditions.
- 9.5 The installation of gross pollutant traps must be in accordance with relevant *Australian Standards* and all maintenance of the proposed gross pollutant traps must be the responsibility of the property owner or body corporate (if applicable).

- 9.6 Any application for a Development Permit for Operational Works (stormwater works) must be accompanied by engineering plans with details of any new drainage systems including retention systems, inlet and outlet structures, or the amendment and upgrading of existing drainage systems to implement the proposed drainage strategy.
- 9.7 Adequate scour protection measures must be provided for the proposed stormwater channel and all stormwater outlets.
- 9.8 The bio basin as identified on the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1) must be landscaped in accordance with Council's requirements. Any application for a Development Permit for Operational Works (stormwater works) must be accompanied by detailed plans and specifications for the proposed bio basin and the design must:
 - 9.8.1 be suitable to the climate and incorporate predominately native species;
 - 9.8.2 maximise areas suitable for on-site infiltration of stormwater;
 - 9.8.3 incorporate shade trees; and
 - 9.8.4 demonstrate that all areas apart from garden beds are fully turfed or hydromulched.

10.0 ROOF AND ALLOTMENT DRAINAGE WORKS

- 10.1 A Development Permit for Operational Works (roof and allotment drainage works) must be obtained prior to the commencement of any drainage works on the development site.
- 10.2 All roof and allotment drainage works must be designed and constructed in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1), *Queensland Urban Drainage Manual, Capricorn Municipal Development Guidelines*, sound engineering practice and the provisions of a Development Permit for Operational Works (roof and allotment drainage works).
- 10.3 All roof and allotment runoff from the development must be directed to a lawful point of discharge and must not restrict, impair or change the natural flow of runoff water or cause a nuisance to surrounding land or infrastructure.
- 10.4 The development must not increase peak stormwater runoff for a selected range of storm events up to and including a one per cent (1%) Annual exceedance probability storm event, for the post-development conditions.

11.0 <u>SITE WORKS</u>

- 11.1 A Development Permit for Operational Works (site works) must be obtained prior to the commencement of any site works on the development site.
- 11.2 Any application for a Development Permit for Operational Works (site works) must be accompanied by an earthworks plan that clearly identifies the following:
 - 11.2.1 the location of cut and/or fill;
 - 11.2.2 the type of fill to be used and the manner in which it is to be compacted;
 - 11.2.3 the quantum of fill to be deposited or removed and finished cut and/or fill levels;
 - 11.2.4 details of any proposed access routes that are intended to be used to transport fill to or from the development site; and
 - 11.2.5 the maintenance of access roads to and from the development site so that they are free of all cut and/or fill material and cleaned as necessary.
- 11.3 All earthworks must be undertaken in accordance with *Australian Standard AS3798 "Guidelines on earthworks for commercial and residential developments".*

- 11.4 Site works must be constructed such that they do not, at any time, in any way restrict, impair or change the natural flow of runoff water, or cause a nuisance or worsening to surrounding land or infrastructure.
- 11.5 If required, any retaining structures above one (1) metre in height that are not incidental works to a Development Permit for Building Works, must not be constructed unless separately and specifically certified by a Registered Professional Engineer of Queensland and must be approved as part of a Development Permit for Operational Works (site works).
- 11.6 If required, any retaining structures close to or crossing sewerage infrastructure must comply with *Queensland Development Code, Mandatory Part 1.4 "Building over or near relevant infrastructure."* The structure must be self-supporting and no additional load must be applied to Council's sewerage infrastructure.

12.0 BUILDING WORKS

- 12.1 A Development Permit for Building Works must be obtained for the proposed structures on the development site.
- 12.2 Impervious paved waste storage areas must be provided in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1) and the *Environmental Protection Regulation 2019* and must be:
 - 12.2.1 designed and located so as not to cause a nuisance to neighbouring properties;
 - 12.2.2 screened so as not to be visible from a public space;
 - 12.2.3 if required, provided with a suitable hosecock and hoses at the refuse container area, and washdown must be drained to the sewer and fitted with an approved stormwater diversion valve arrangement in accordance with the Sewerage Trade Waste provisions and the *Plumbing and Drainage Act* 2018.

As an alternative to a washdown facility, a fully contained commercial bin cleaning service is acceptable provided no wastewater is discharged from the site to the sewer.

- 12.3 The finished floor level for habitable areas (refer to condition 2.1) must be a minimum of 500 millimetres above a one per cent (1%) Annual exceedance probability flood inundation level.
- 12.4 All non-habitable areas subjected to flood inundation during a one per cent (1%) Annual exceedance probability flood event, must be designed and constructed using suitable flood resilient materials.
- 12.5 All electrical and telecommunication services and utilities connected to the property, including electrical outlets, must be designed and installed at such a height that they are a minimum of 500 millimetres above a one per cent (1%) Annual exceedance probability flood level.

13.0 LANDSCAPING WORKS

- 13.1 All landscaping must be established generally in accordance with the approved plans (refer to condition 2.1). The landscaping must be constructed and/or established prior to the commencement of the use and the landscaped areas must predominantly contain plant species that have low water dependency.
- 14.0 <u>ELECTRICITY</u>
- 14.1 Electricity services must be provided to the development in accordance with the standards and requirements of the relevant service provider.

15.0 <u>TELECOMMUNICATIONS</u>

15.1 Telecommunications services must be provided to the development in accordance with the standards and requirements of the relevant service provider.

16.0 ASSET MANAGEMENT

- 16.1 Any alteration necessary to electricity, telephone, water mains, sewerage mains, and/or public utility installations resulting from the development or in connection with the development, must be undertaken and completed at no cost to Council.
- 16.2 Any damage to existing stormwater, water supply and sewerage infrastructure, kerb and channel, pathway or roadway (including removal of concrete slurry from public land and Council infrastructure), that occurs while any works are being carried out in association with this development approval must be repaired at full cost to the developer. This includes the reinstatement of any existing traffic signs or pavement markings that may have been removed or damaged.
- 16.3 'As Constructed' information pertaining to assets to be handed over to Council and those which may have an impact on Council's existing and future assets must be provided prior to the commencement of the use. This information must be provided in accordance with the *Asset Design and As Constructed Manual (ADAC).*

17.0 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

- 17.1 Any lighting devices associated with the development, such as sensory lighting, must be positioned on the development site and shielded so as not to cause glare or other nuisance to nearby residents and motorists. Night lighting must be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with *Australian Standard AS4282 "Control of the obtrusive effects of outdoor lighting"*.
- 17.2 Noise emitted from the activity must not cause an environmental nuisance.
- 17.3 Operations on the site must have no significant impact on the amenity of adjoining premises or the surrounding area due to the emission of light, noise or dust.

18.0 OPERATING PROCEDURES

18.1 All construction materials, waste, waste skips, machinery and contractors' vehicles must be located and stored or parked within the development site. Storage of materials or parking of construction machinery or contractors' vehicles must not occur within Jardine Street.

ADVISORY NOTES

NOTE 1. Aboriginal Cultural Heritage

It is advised that under section 23 of the *Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003*, a person who carries out an activity must take all reasonable and practicable measures to ensure the activity does not harm Aboriginal cultural heritage (the "cultural heritage duty of care"). Maximum penalties for breaching the duty of care are listed in the Aboriginal cultural heritage legislation. The information on Aboriginal cultural heritage is available on the Department of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander and Partnerships website <u>www.datsip.qld.gov.au</u>.

NOTE 2. <u>General Environmental Duty</u>

General environmental duty under the *Environmental Protection Act* 1994 prohibits unlawful environmental nuisance caused by noise, aerosols, particles, dust, ash, fumes, light, odour or smoke beyond the boundaries of the development site during all stages of the development including earthworks, construction and operation.

NOTE 3. General Safety Of Public During Construction

The Work Health and Safety Act 2011 and Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices must be complied with in carrying out any construction works, and to ensure safe traffic control and safe public access in respect of works being constructed on a road.

NOTE 4. Infrastructure Charges Notice

This application is subject to infrastructure charges in accordance with Council policies. The charges are presented on an Infrastructure Charges Notice.

NOTE 5. Building Works

Council will be a referral agency for the Building Works Permit where the development does not comply with the Queensland Development Code. This Development Permit does not constitute a referral agency response from Council for the Building Works Permit in relation to building envelopes and setbacks.

RECOMMENDATION B

THAT to reflect the above changes, Multicap Limited, be issued with an Amended Staged Infrastructure Charges Notice for the amount of \$228,203.00.

Moved by:Councillor MathersSeconded by:Councillor SmithMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11.2 2023 ROCKHAMPTON AGRICULTURAL SHOW COMMITTEE

File No:	14298
Authorising Officer:	Greg Bowden - Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton
Author:	Eileen Brown - Events Coordinator

SUMMARY

This report outlines the proposed Rockhampton Agricultural Show Committee for the 2023 Show.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT Council approve the 2023 Rockhampton Agricultural Show Committee as follows:

- Greg Bowden, Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton (Chair)
- Councillor Ellen Smith
- Councillor Grant Mathers
- Peter Curtis
- Rod Green
- Ian Lovegrove
- Sharnie Friske
- Eileen Brown, Events Coordinator, Advance Rockhampton

Moved by:Councillor SmithSeconded by:Councillor MathersMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11.3 ROCKHAMPTON AGRICULTURAL SHOW TENDER CONSIDERATION PLAN

File No:	14298
Authorising Officer:	Greg Bowden - Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton
Author:	Eileen Brown - Events Coordinator

SUMMARY

To seek approval under s230 of the Local Government Regulation (2012) for the procurement of various goods and services for the Rockhampton Agricultural Show 2023 and 2024.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT Council adopt the Tender Consideration Plan for the 2023 and 2024 Rockhampton Agricultural Show pursuant to s230 of the *Local Government Regulation*.

Moved by:Councillor LatchamSeconded by:Councillor MathersMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11.4 ROCKYNATS - TRADE FEES AND CHARGES

File No:	14299
Authorising Officer:	Greg Bowden - Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton
Author:	Eileen Brown - Events Coordinator

SUMMARY

The intention of this report is to outline the Rockynats Food, Trade and Market Site Fees and Charges that have now been established for the Rockynats Car Festival 2023 – 2025 for review and adoption with the addition of a new category of 'Non-Commercial Trade' within the Walter Pierce Pavilion.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT in accordance with the requirements of the *Local Government Act 2009* Council endorses the addition of a 'Walter Pierce Pavilion - Non-Commercial Trade' category to the Rockynats Food, Trade and Market Site Fees and Charges.

Moved by:Councillor KirklandSeconded by:Councillor MathersMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11.5 ROCKHAMPTON REGION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2023-2028 AND ROCKHAMPTON REGION ECONOMIC ACTION PLAN 2023-2028

File No:	1291
Authorising Officer:	Greg Bowden - Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton
Author:	Mary Ryan - Economic Development Manager

SUMMARY

This report presents to Council the draft Rockhampton Region Economic Development Strategy 2023-2028 (RREDS) and Rockhampton Region Economic Action Plan 2023-2028 (RREAP).

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT Council endorses the draft Rockhampton Region Economic Development Strategy 2023-2028 and the Rockhampton Region Economic Action Plan 2023-2028 and endorses that public consultation will be undertaken by Advance Rockhampton from 23 November 2022 to 14 December 2022.

Moved by:Mayor WilliamsSeconded by:Councillor FisherMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11.6 SUMMARY BUDGET MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2022

File No:	8148
Authorising Officer:	Ross Cheesman - Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Author:	Marnie Taylor - Chief Financial Officer

SUMMARY

The Chief Financial Officer presenting the Rockhampton Regional Council Summary Budget Management Report for the period ended 31 October 2022.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT the Rockhampton Regional Council Summary Budget Management Report for the period ended 31 October 2022 be received.

Moved by:Mayor WilliamsSeconded by:Councillor FisherMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11.7 WHOLE OF COUNCIL CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR PERIOD ENDING OCTOBER 2022

File No:	1392
Authorising Officer:	Ross Cheesman - Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Author:	Ross Cheesman - Deputy Chief Executive Officer

SUMMARY

Deputy Chief Executive Officer presenting the Whole of Council Corporate Performance Report for period ending 31 October 2022 for Councillors' information.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT the Whole of Council Corporate Performance Report for period ending 31 October 2022 be received.

Moved by:Councillor KirklandSeconded by:Councillor RutherfordMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

12 NOTICES OF MOTION

Nil

13 QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

Nil

14 URGENT BUSINESS\QUESTIONS

Nil

Meeting Adjourned

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

10:05AM That the meeting be adjourned until 10:20am.

Moved by:Councillor SmithSeconded by:Councillor RutherfordMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Meeting Resumed

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

10:21AM That the meeting be resumed.

Moved by:	Councillor Smith
Seconded by:	Councillor Wickerson
MOTION CARRIED	

Members Present:

The Mayor, Councillor A P Williams (Chairperson) Deputy Mayor, Councillor N K Fisher Councillor S Latcham Councillor C E Smith Councillor C R Rutherford Councillor M D Wickerson Councillor D Kirkland Councillor G D Mathers

In Attendance:

Mr E Pardon – Chief Executive Officer Mr R Cheesman – Deputy Chief Executive Officer Mr P Kofod – General Manager Regional Services Ms A Cutler – General Manager Community Services Ms M Taylor – Chief Financial Officer Mr G Bowden – Executive Manager Advance Rockhampton Mr A Russell – Executive Manager Strategy and Planning Mr D Morrison – Manager Workforce and Governance Mr M Crow – Manager Infrastructure Planning Mr M O'Keeffe – Manager Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling Mr J Kann – Manager Office of the Mayor Mr J Gwydir – Manager Civil Operations Ms E Dwyer – Manager Community Assets and Facilities Ms L Leeder – Senior Committee Support Officer

15 CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with the provisions of section 254J(3) of the *Local Government Regulation* 2012, a local government may resolve to close a meeting to the public to discuss confidential items, such that its Councillors or members consider it necessary to close the meeting.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT the meeting be closed to the public to discuss the following items, which are considered confidential in accordance with section 254J(3) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012*, for the reasons indicated.

16.1 October Monthly Budget Review

In accordance with section 254J(3)(c) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* it is considered necessary to close the meeting to discuss the local government's budget.

16.2 Waste Management Matter

In accordance with section 254J(3)(i) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* it is considered necessary to close the meeting to discuss a matter the local government is required to keep confidential under a law of, or formal arrangement with, the Commonwealth or a State.

Moved by:	Councillor Smith	
Seconded by:	Councillor Kirkland	
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY		

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

10:21AM

THAT pursuant to s5.12 *Council Meeting Procedures* the meeting moves into Closed Session and be closed to the public.

Moved by:	Councillor Mathers
Seconded by:	Councillor Smith
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY	

- 11:19AM Councillor Mathers left the meeting room
- 11:19AM Councillor Mathers returned to the meeting room
- 11:38AM Councillor Smith left the meeting room
- 11:42AM Councillor Smith returned to the meeting room
- 11:43AM Chief Executive Officer left the meeting room
- 11:45AM Councillor Smith left the meeting room
- 11:45AM Chief Executive Officer returned to the meeting room
- 11:45AM Councillor Smith returned to the meeting room

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

12:38PM

THAT pursuant to s5.12 *Council Meeting Procedures* the meeting moves out of Closed Session and be opened to the public.

Moved by:Councillor SmithSeconded by:Councillor KirklandMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

16 CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS

16.1 OCTOBER MONTHLY BUDGET REVIEW

File No: 8785

Authorising Officer: Ross Cheesman - Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Author: Marnie Taylor - Chief Financial Officer

In accordance with section 254J(3)(c) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* it is considered necessary to close the meeting to discuss the local government's budget.

SUMMARY

Chief Financial Officer presenting updated budget estimates to 31 October 2022.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT the report be received and the budget estimate changes be endorsed.

Moved by:Mayor WilliamsSeconded by:Councillor FisherMOTION CARRIEDCouncillor Latcham recorded his vote against the motion

16.2 WASTE MANAGEMENT MATTER

File No:	11092/1914
Authorising Officer:	Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author:	Angus Russell - Executive Manager Strategy and Planning Michael O'Keeffe - Manager Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling

In accordance with section 254J(3)(i) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* it is considered necessary to close the meeting to discuss a matter the local government is required to keep confidential under a law of, or formal arrangement with, the Commonwealth or a State.

SUMMARY

The report provides discussion of and recommendations on a confidential waste management matter.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

THAT Council:

- 1. endorse the recommendations contained within the report;
- 2. formally seeks additional time to provide feedback on the draft Location Strategy and Guidelines; and
- 3. request the Department of Environment and Science engage the Regional Waste Management Plan consultant to review and comment on the Location Strategy and Guidelines to ensure alignment.

Moved by:Councillor FisherSeconded by:Councillor LatchamMOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

17 CLOSURE OF MEETING

There being no further business the meeting closed at 12:39pm.

SIGNATURE

CHAIRPERSON

DATE